Solicitation No. AHRQ-05-0010 





Amendment 0002

The following amendment is issued for the following reasons:

1.  To respond to questions received by potential offerors.

2.  To revise the following sections of the RFP:

a.
Section I: Due to FAC 2005-04, Clauses 52.215-18 and 52.219-4 should now be dated (JUL 2005).

b.
Section L and M: Remove the requirement for the submission of a Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan and to remove reference to such plan from all parts of the solicitation. The Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan was to receive 5 points, but the requirement has been deleted.  Therefore, the maximum score a proposal can receive is now 120.
c. Section G.4 Information on Vouchers: 

Revise:  (1) The Contractor is required to include the following minimum information on vouchers:

Revise:  (2) (a) Direct Labor – include all persons, listing the person’s name, title, number of hours or days worked, hourly rate (unburdened), the total cost per person and a total amount of this category.


Add: (2) (l) Current amount billed by individual cost element and total dollar amount and cumulative amount billed by individual cost element and total dollar amount.
3.  To include a sample format for estimated costs (for use when responding to a request for task order).

4.  To include the Interested Parties/Bidders List.
The date and time set for the receipt of proposals is NOT changed and remains 12:00 p.m. (Noon) local time on Thursday, July 21, 2005.

Technical Questions for RFP AHRQ-05-0010

1.
Should we list the contracts for the P.I. only or should we list contracts for all key personnel?  

The focus of this question is not clear.  For the purpose of Past Performance Information, contracts listed in the proposal should be for the organization, not for individual staff.

2.
Are we allowed to include foundation grants with the contracts?


Yes, you may include grants as part of past performance.

3.
Do we need to include NIH grants as well?
You are not required to include NIH grants; however they should be included if they were completed during the past three years or include recently completed and ongoing work directly related to the requirements of this acquisition.
4.
The Past Performance Instructions on page 66, Section (1) indicate that offerors shall submit “a list of the last five (5) contracts and subcontracts completed during the past three years and all contracts and subcontracts currently in progress.”   Section (4) on this same page and page 67 states that “the attached Past Performance Questionnaire and Contractor Performance Form (Attachment 1) shall be completed by those contracting organizations listed in (1) above” and that “it is the responsibility of the offeror to ensure that these documents are forwarded to the Contracting Officer”. Would it be possible for AHRQ to revise this requirement so that it reads a “list of the last five (5) contracts and subcontracts completed during the past three years and all contracts and subcontracts currently in process that are similar in nature to the solicitation’s Statement of Work”.   This language is the same as in the first sentence of Section (4) of the Past Performance Instructions and, we believe, would meet the spirit and intent of the RFP.

Please reference contracts and subcontracts completed during the past three years and include recently completed and ongoing work directly related to the requirements of this acquisition.

5.
The Instructions for the Business Proposal on page 68 indicate that offerors are required to submit a Cost/Price Proposal that includes (1) certified, unloaded, labor rates for individuals expected to work on a project of this size and nature, (2) documentation indicating a cost accounting system and (3) documentation that offerors have a current indirect cost rate agreement.   With this limited business information, it is unclear to us how AHRQ will be able to perform a cost analysis as indicated in Section L.14 (d) on page 72 of the RFP.  Will this cost analysis be conducted in accordance with FAR 15.404-1(c)?  If so, we feel there are many other costs elements that would need to be presented in a business proposal besides unloaded labor rates in order for us to be able to negotiate a fair and reasonable price.  Will a cost realism analysis be conducted as required by FAR 4104-1(d)(2)?  The FAR states that cost realism analyses shall be performed on cost-reimbursement contracts to determine the probable cost of performance for each offeror.  Again, with the limited business information being requested we are uncertain how AHRQ and technically acceptable offerors in the competitive range will be able to negotiate a fair and reasonable price for the work to be performed.
The competitive range will consist of those offerors who are highly rated, based upon the technical and past performance evaluation.  The cost analysis will consist of establishing Labor Category Hourly Rate Ranges for the four Labor Categories (I, II, III, and IV).  The negotiations will include the evaluation of the reasonableness of the individual cost components related to the Labor Category Hourly Rate Ranges (unburdened rate, indirect rates and fee/ profit, if applicable). 

A cost realism analysis to determine the cost of performance of each offeror cannot be made for the base contract award.  The base contract award will be awarded with no dollars, individual task orders will reflect the value of the specific work to be performed.   Each task order will be negotiated on the basis of the work to be performed and the costs proposed. The proposed costs will include specific personnel and their corresponding rate within the Labor Category Hourly Rate Ranges.  The proposed costs for a specific task order may also include specific other direct costs, as necessary for performance of the task (i.e. travel, consultants, consumables).  These will be reviewed and negotiated on an as needed basis.  

A representative sample of position that could be averaged to propose one hourly rate range per class is requested.

6.
Would it be possible for a sample task order to be included in the RFP?  This would allow all offerors to submit competing business proposals based on a defined requirement and AHRQ reviewers could compare cost elements and prices across submissions.   Lastly, without a sample task, offerors are unable to provide information on labor skill mix determination, why individuals were selected for particular jobs, and the percentage of full-time core personnel dedicated to the sample task order.   

The Agency anticipates that it will be able to adequately determine capabilities based upon the offerors response to the general Statement of Work provided in the solicitation.  Therefore, no sample task order will be provided.

7.
Does AHRQ have suggestions for ways to write the “technical approach” section given that the specific task orders are not yet determined?  

The proposal must be written to demonstrate the offerors ability to understand and provide the types of services and individuals described in the Statement of Work and the Technical Evaluation Criteria.  Please also refer to Section L.10 Technical Proposal Instructions.  
8.
On Page 62, item 1.e) appears to be missing.  Is this a typing error or is an item missing from this list? 


This is a typing error.  It should read a thru f.

9.
Because I anticipate a large number of key personnel, the inclusion of complete CVs for each person would make the proposal extremely long.  Can biosketches be substituted for CVs? 

Yes, the PHS 398 biographical sketch format may be substituted for CV’s.  Forms and downloadable instructions may be found at the following website: http://grants1.nih.gov/grants/funding/phs398/phs398.html

10.
Page 1 shows that the past performance information is a separate section from the Technical Proposal, but on page 60 it appears that the past performance information should be part of the technical proposal.  Which is correct? 

Past performance should be separate from the technical proposal.

11.
The rates in section B3 appear to be blank.  Is this intended? 
Yes, these hourly rates (range for each labor category) will be filled in once they are negotiated between AHRQ and the awardee.

12.
On Page 17 it says “at least one topic-specific content expert will be included as key personnel for each task order”.  Since the task orders are not yet determined how can we know which experts to include? 

Offerors are expected to have affiliations which provide access to clinical and scientific experts.  Proposals should identify these affiliations in order for reviewers to evaluate the capacity of the center to conduct comparative effectiveness research.

13.
Does section K need to be included in the proposal. If so where? 

Yes, in the original business proposal.

14. What do the letter “G” ‘s mean on page 84?  Should these be check boxes?  Can a new form be posted? 
Cannot find what this question is in reference to.

 
15.
Does the submission of an institution for the CERT grant (review pending) preclude them from submitting an application for DECIDE? Also, if someone is a Co-PI on a CERT grant application (review pending), can they be PI on the DECIDE application?

No, submitting an application for the CERT grant does not preclude an organization from submitting an application for the DEcIDE Network.  Yes, a person acting as the Co-PI on a grant can be the project director/manager on the DEciDE proposal.
16.
As we read Amendment 1 to the above referenced RFP removing the requirement to submit a Small Business Subcontracting Plan (SBSP) as part of our Business Proposal, offerors are still required to submit a Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan (SDBPP) as described in Section L.12.  Is this correct even though the same $500,000 thresholds apply to the SDBPP and the SBSP?

All references to the requirement of a Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan are deleted from this solicitation.  However when task orders are completed, and if they are estimated to be over $500,000, the requirement for the submission of a Small Disadvantaged Business Plan and a Small Business Subcontracting Plan will be included in the request for task order.

Please note new scoring guidelines:  The technical proposal can receive a maximum of 100 points.  Past Performance can receive a maximum score of 20.  The Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan was to receive 5 points, but the requirement for submission of the Small Disadvantaged Participation Plan has been deleted.  Therefore, the maximum score a proposal can receive is now 120.

17.
The RFP states that “It is AHRQ’s expectation that at least one topic-specific content expert will be included as key personnel for each Task Order.” Given that key personnel may vary from Task Order to Task Order, what guidance can you give as to who should be identified as Key Personnel in the response to this RFP?

Reference Question 12.
18.
The list of unallowable items (B.4) lists “Information Technology hardware or software.” Yet, these will be computing intensive projects, and timeliness is an issue—having dedicated hardware and software would improve timeliness. Will costs for leasing computer hardware be allowable? Will the cost of university service centers that provide computing services be allowable?

B.4 states the cost for Information Technology hardware or software are not allowable as a direct cost to the contract, unless authorized in writing by the Contracting Officer.  Therefore, lease of computer hardware or software will be considered and negotiated on an as-needed basis.  It should be noted, however, that it is not the practice of the Government to purchase general IT hardware or software for use under a contract.
19.
Our University’s core genotyping facility charges per assay rather than per hour. How do we include the range of assay costs in the proposal?

The cost proposal must include an explanation with justification for this proposed cost element, including the basis for the cost and the allocation method.

20.
The proposal requests “a list of the last five (5) contracts and subcontracts completed during the past three years and all contracts and subcontracts currently in process.” Do cooperative agreements count as contracts for this purpose? Should we list all current contracts for the entire organization (this would be infeasible to produce), all contracts for any project personnel, all contracts for key personnel, or something else?

Yes, you can include cooperative agreements.  Reference Question 4.
21.
It appears that CVs/biosketches/resumes are to be included within the “Key Personnel” section of the Technical Proposal, but do not count in the page count. Is this correct?

Resumes and CVs do not count as part of the 125 page limitation but please note in L.10 Technical Proposal Instructions, “Resumes or CVs are only required for key personnel.  Brief biographic sketches of other personnel may be provided.”  The offeror shall succinctly describe the proposed Key Personnel and other individuals – their experience, education and ability to provide the services of this requirement.  Offerors may summarize their program expertise by adding individual-specific bibliographies as a way to facilitate reviewer evaluation of the proposal.  It is noted that some offerors also provide an appendix of CVs, biosketches and resumes but this is specifically not requested or desired. 

22.
Are “Project Managers” envisioned as faculty-level leaders of projects, or senior-level staff? The latter generally do not have clinical training.

Offerors are required to choose the appropriate skill mix for their proposed research center.  It is desirable, but not required, that the Project Manager have at least some general clinical training and experience.
23.
Should we include staff who will perform fiscal management of the Task Orders?

Yes.
24.
Page 68 of RFP requests “Certified, unloaded, labor rates for individuals expected to work on a project of this size and nature Class Levels I through IV, see Sections B.3 and L.10).”   Please define unloaded.

Unloaded means direct salaries exclusive of overhead, fringe benefits, and general and administrative expenses.

25. 
Can the "small disadvantaged business" be a non-profit "minority serving institution"?
A Small Disadvantaged Business (SDB) must be certified with the Small Business Administration (SBA) as a SDB Concern or have a completed SDB application pending at the SBA.   Therefore, if a Minority Serving Institution meets the above requirements it can be considered a SDB.
26.
For the business proposal, what format should be used for the cost/price proposal?  Do you have a spreadsheet for specific format that is required or are we allowed to use our own format?
The offeror may use the format of their choosing for the business proposal.  However, it must include all of the requirements at set forth in L.13 Business Proposal.  AHRQ has found that the attached Breakdown of Proposed Esimated Cost (Plus Fee) and Labor Hours format is responsive to the needs of L.13.  If awarded a contract, offerors will be requested to use this format when responding to a request for task order.
27. 
Are labor rates the only cost required in the cost/price proposal or are we to submit a cost proposal for a certain type of task?  

Please provide unloaded labor rates.  There is no sample task order included in the request for proposal.
28.
"Past Performance Information" seems to be required both as item G. within the Technical Proposal (which refers to section L.11 of the RFP), and also as item B under "Offerors shall submit the following:" which also refers to section L.11 of the RFP. Does Past Performance Information need to be included twice? Does it count within the page limit of the Technical Proposal?

Reference Question 10.
29.
For the past performance evaluation are we to send the evaluation forms to the contractor to complete and forward to you?


Yes.

30.
If labor costs are the only costs to be provided at this time how are we to determine “targets expressed in dollars and percentage of total contract value” as required for the Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan in Section L.12 Letter A number 6 and 7?  Or determine the extent of SDB concerns at this time? 

Reference Question 16.

31.
Within the labor class descriptions (Class I, Class II, etc.), it is not clear how to classify business administrators who will manage fiscal aspects of the task orders. Would you please clarify how business administrators should be classified?

It is up to the offeror to determine how to classify business administrators.  
32.
Should all companies that are submitting a proposal have a GSA schedule?  Is it a requirement to have a GSA schedule?


No, this is not a requirement of the RFP.

33.
Regarding Past Performance Information: Are we being asked to report only past and current “CONTRACTS” or are “GRANTS” also included in this report.


Reference Question 2.
34. On page 5, Section B.3, should we list ALL possible positions (e.g. clinician, pharmacist, statistician, epidemiologist, etc.) across classes that might ever be used/budgeted on a task order or just a representative sample of positions that could then be averaged to show one hourly rate per class? 
A representative sample of positions that could be averaged to propose one hourly rate range per class is requested.

35. Please explain why Section H.9, Personnel Security Requirements, is required.  The HHS Credit Release is not Attachment Number 3.  Is the internet link to the GSA forms library correct?  Is the Program Support Staff (PSC) in the Washington area?  If so, how will remote contractors with a large team of personnel be fingerprinted within the required 30 days after contract award?  Will security clearances be required of subcontractors 30 days after contract award?

This is not required if employees will not be working in DHHS owned or leased space.
36. It is conceivable that we will be requesting past performance ratings from institutions with which we have had a previous contractual relationship for similar work.  We and these same institutions may now be fellow competitors for this contract.  Does AHRQ recognize this as a possible conflict and, if so, how will it be mitigated in the evaluation process? 

The Past Performance Evaluation is conducted by the Contracting Officer and Project Officer on each offeror in the competitive range.  Each offerors past performance evaluation score is based only on the information obtained for that offeror.  AHRQ does not consider such an evaluation to be a conflict.

37. Will a bidders list be made available as part of this amendment?
Yes.  See Attachment 2.

38. Can FAR 52.227-14 Rights in Data – General be amended to include Alternate IV?

No.

39. The proposal states that:

The network task orders will focus on “rapidly develop[ing] scientific evidence and new analytic tools to assist health care providers, patients, and policy makers with making informed decisions about the comparative effectiveness, appropriateness, safety, and outcomes of health care items and services, particularly prescription medications and medical devices. The DEcIDE research centers will be expected to work closely with other AHRQ programs [EPCs, CERTs, IDSRN, PRBNs] to implement Section 1013 of the 2003 MMA.” [pg 8] 

Multi-year task orders may address a variety of assignments involving observational investigations, methodological research, interventional research, and studies employing prospective designs. [pg 9]

Are we to assume that the DEcIDE network sites may be involved in original data collection so that we should address our competency for conducting practical clinical trials? 

Some DEcIDE task orders will involve collection of new data or derivation of new information from existing data (e.g., from medical records).  Therefore, proposals should address the ability of the center or its subcontractor(s) to conduct research that involves data collection and analysis, particularly with human subjects.  

Proposals are not specifically required to address a center’s competency for conducting practical clinical trials.  If, however, a center has expertise in designing particular types of studies (e.g., case-control studies), using certain research methods (e.g., survey sampling), or developing innovative trial designs for comparative effectiveness research, it is recommended that the proposal include information about this expertise and experience.

40.
On page 14, the fourth primary objective is to “test and evaluate data standards, controlled terminologies, and ontologies that enable information system interoperability, drug safety, registry development and knowledge sharing.”  

Please provide examples of what type of work this may entail?  Should we expect this to be a separate task or part of another research project?
This objective applies information science and health informatics to the study of therapeutic effectiveness and health outcomes.  An example of the type of work this may entail is developing applications of RxNorm to study drug interactions in computerized pharmacy records.  RxNorm is a standardized nomenclature for clinical drugs that is produced by the National Library of Medicine.  For information about RxNorm, please see

http://www.nlm.nih.gov/research/umls/rxnorm_main.html and

http://mor.nlm.nih.gov/download/rxnav/

Another example is using the Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System (HCPCS) codes to create electronic tools for studying drug utilization across the continuum of care.  For information about HCPCS codes see

http://www.cms.hhs.gov/medicare/hcpcs/

This objective may include projects that are a) part of another research project, or b) a separate task.  

41.
On page 31, AHRQ “will use best effort to review the proposed report, presentation, or other text… to assure the quality of the statistical work” within a 3-month timeline.  Will this 3-month review period apply to text for abstract submissions to scientific meetings?    

AHRQ will make reasonable efforts to expedite review of material proposed for abstract submissions to scientific meetings.

42. Database will be hosted onsite or at vendor location?
In general, DEcIDE research centers are responsible for hosting relevant database(s) for completing work assignments.

43. How many data streams are we talking about? One or more stream(s) per data supplier?
In general, AHRQ will not supply data for DEcIDE research centers.
44. Are there specific mathematical/statistical methods AHRQ would prefer to see information about?
There are no preferred mathematical or statistical methods.  It is expected that DEcIDE research teams will have expertise in the clinical sciences, statistics, and epidemiology.
45. Section L.11 - point (1), (pg. 66) of the RFP mention’s to list “all contracts and subcontracts currently in process”. Please clarify on how bidders are to present information on their current contracts? We have hundreds of clients and may not be feasible for all of them to have to fill out the questionnaires. We suggest providing questionnaires for the top 10 clients by industry or service offerings. We can provide information on all of our contracts – just not the questionnaires.
Reference Question 4

46. Is AHRQ interested in having a DEcIDE network awardee, provide additional data sources they may have authorization or ownership of?
No.

47. Are there specific statistical software programs AHRQ would prefer to see information about?
No, however, offerors with expertise in specialized software programs such as those for spatial analysis should describe this expertise.
48. Is the environment required to hold a security or networthiness (e.g. DITSCAP)?
No, although some task orders may specify network security requirements.

49. What is the number of contract personnel currently assigned fulltime, on site and off site dedicated to DEcIDE?
This is a new requirement.
50. What are the titles, position descriptions and skill levels of contract personnel currently assigned full-time on-site?
Not applicable.

51.
Is there any preference to technology platforms (e.g. Java or Microsoft)?
No, there is not a technology platform preference. 

52.
If not, what platform is currently used?

AHRQ currently uses multiple platforms including Java and Microsoft.
53.
What type of database platforms will the main data consolidation center be receiving data inflows from?
Each DEcIDE research center will maintain its own database.  If a project needs a data consolidation center, the database platform will be specified in the task order.  

54. What type of feeds will the suppliers provide us, e.g., flat txt files, xls, mdbs, in proprietary format, direct access to their databases (through a firewall using VPNs or by hitting a databases on the DMZ)?
In general, AHRQ expects the task orders issued will take advantage of, or rely upon, the data resources available to the contractors (either under proprietary ownership or other third parties licensing agreements).  On a case by case basis, however, access to certain unique or confidential databases may be arranged and provided by AHRQ.

55.
What is the frequency for data feeds from the remote databases? 

Each DEcIDE research center will maintain its own database and determine feeds from remote databases.  As previously noted, AHRQ generally expects the task orders issued will take advantage of, or rely upon, the data resources available to the contractors (either under proprietary ownership or other third parties licensing agreements).  On a case by case basis, however, access to certain unique or confidential databases may be arranged and provided by AHRQ.

56.
Do we design the layout of the data files and/or the table definitions in the suppliers’ databases? Can we request data to be given to us in a specific way or have a specific protocol for the format, timeline and workflow?
In general, AHRQ will not supply data for DEcIDE research centers.  As noted above, AHRQ generally expects the task orders issued will take advantage of, or rely upon, the data resources available to the contractors (either under proprietary ownership or other third parties licensing agreements).  On a case by case basis, however, access to certain unique or confidential databases may be arranged and provided by AHRQ.

57. How close to real-time data do we have to provide? What’s the data historical horizon we’ll be having access to?
Any requirements for DEcIDE data will be specified in the task order.

58. Is there any technical team to support with other systems data and integration? FTEs?

No technical team is available from AHRQ.  Offerors are expected to employ technical teams as necessary to complete the task orders.  

59. Does a “Minority Designated Research Center” qualify as a minority-owned business for subcontracting?

Minority Designated Research Centers may be qualified only if the ownership is minority owned.  If the Minority Designated Research Center is minority owned, then they are qualified as minority-owned business for subcontracting.

60. P.5 of the RFP: Does the maximum total amount over the 2 year contract period of $1.5 million mean that this is the total amount that is set aside at AHRQ or is this the max amount for a Center? 

This is the maximum amount per Contractor.

61.
May we ask program directors, contract officers, or task order officers at AHRQ to serve as evaluators of our previous performance on projects?  We ask this in light of the comment on page 2 of the solicitation prohibiting any discussion with individuals at AHRQ outside of the Division of Contracts Management.

Yes.
62.
On page 7 of the solicitation, it states that the following costs are not allowed: travel to attend general scientific meetings, consultant fees in excess of $500/day, and information technology hardware or software. Could you clarify whether support would be allowed for travel to scientific meetings if it was for the purpose of presenting the results of a specific task order or work assignment?  Does the restriction on consultant fees apply to honoraria that would be paid to external experts who might be asked to give input on projects?  Could we pay consultants an hourly rate as long as it does not exceed the maximum hourly rate permitted by AHRQ?  Could you clarify the definition of information technology software? Given the wide variety of projects that we could be asked to perform, it seems likely that we will need to use a wide variety of software products for database management, analysis, etc.  Also, for any given project we may need to purchase software for one or more team members to avoid violating software copyright restrictions. 

Section B.4 Provisions Applicable to Direct Costs states that certain proposed costs require prior Contracting Officer approval before the contractor may charge these costs directly to the contract.  The procedure for approval is generally a written request with supporting detail to the Project Officer.  Approval will be provided on a case by case basis, as the need arises.  It is anticipated that any of the costs mentioned in this provision will be considered and negotiated for specific task orders.  This means the CO approval would become effective once the task order is negotiated and awarded.  However, for other costs of this nature that arise as the task order work proceeds, the offeror is required to obtain prior CO approval.  Specific responses are provided below:

a.  A request for support to travel to a scientific meeting would be considered if it meets certain criteria, the PO thinks the travel and attendance at the scientific meeting is necessary for the work of the contract, and the costs can be paid out of the funds available to the contract.   

b.  Yes, the restriction on consultant fees apply to honoraria that would be paid to external experts who might be asked to give input on projects.  Consultants proposed in excess of $500/ day require prior Contracting Officer approval (written request with supporting detail—resume, salary history).  The hourly rate limitation (Salary Cap Guide Notice Section H.8)   does not apply to Consultants. 

c.  Each proposed cost for Information technology hardware or software will be considered on a case by case basis.  It is noted that each offeror is expected to have the hardware and software (infrastructure)  necessary to perform the day to day operations of the DeCIDE network. 

63.
Does AHRQ anticipate that there will be a formal process for nominating topics for specific task orders, such as the process used by the EPC Program? For example, could a professional society nominate a topic for the DEcIDE Network?

Task order topics will be generated via a variety of mechanisms.  
64.
On page 15 of the solicitation, it states that offerors are encouraged to identify one or more areas of expertise for example in therapeutics, scientific methods or access to unique patient populations. On page 18, it states that it is not anticipated that DEcIDE research centers will specialize in specific topic areas or disease conditions. This seems somewhat contradictory since access to a unique patient population (such as a longitudinal cohort of patients with a particular disease) might lead a center to specialize in that patient population's specific disease. Could you clarify whether it is acceptable for a center to focus on selected clinical patient populations?
Section 1013 of the Medicare Modernization Act includes a breadth of activities across a wide range of patient populations - from children (i.e., SCHIP beneficiaries) to elderly (i.e., Medicare enrollees).  AHRQ recognizes it may be unrealistic or difficult for one DEcIDE center to have the capacity or expertise to address all questions about comparative effectiveness.  Therefore, it is acceptable for a center to focus on selected clinical patient populations because of unique access to the patient population(s).  However, offerors with expanded capacity to conduct high quality research relevant to multiple conditions and settings are also sought.  It is recommended that offerors accurately describe the strengths of their proposed research program, facilities, and personnel so that the overall DEcIDE network (i.e., all contractors in the network) will form a comprehensive program with the capacity to conduct the range of activities authorized in Section 1013 of MMA.
65.
When calculating the maximum permitted hourly wage rate that corresponds to an annual limit of $180,100 per year, does AHRQ assume a work-year of 2080 hours to get to $86.59 per hour? 

Yes.

66.
Do you prefer full-length CVs rather than 4-page NIH-style biosketches for all key personnel, even if each of those CVs are more than 40 pages long?


Reference Question 9.
67.
RFP page 19:  “The required level of time commitment for senior clinical and methodological expertise will generally be consistent across the multi-year awards.”  “…substantial time commitments”

a.  Does AHRQ have some “requirement” in mind and, if so, can AHRQ specify this or what “substantial” is intended to mean?

Requirements, if any, will be stated in the task order.  The DEcIDE statement of work states that, “...time commitments and work products may vary to reflect discrete programmatic needs...”.  

b.  Can AHRQ define “consistent” in this context and whether it is intended to be across DEcIDE awardees, or across only tasks WITHIN a given awardee’s tasks?
For purposes of responding to this solicitation, offerors should expect a consistent level of effort across the life of the contract for senior clinical and methodological expertise.

c.  Does this requirement mean that every individual must be at a required, substantial amount of time, or that the “team” itself sums to that required, substantial time commitment?

No, every individual is not required to have a substantial amount of time devoted to DEcIDE.  Multi-year task orders, when issued, will require stable “teams” with substantial time commitments to ensure rapid response and turnaround of assigned topics, as well as continuity of effort over an extended period of time.

68.
RFP page 20:  “… system of monitoring and tracking outcomes and impact of its work.”

a. Can AHRQ be more specific about that “outcomes” and types of “impacts” of the DEcIDE centers that it is interested in?  Are these patient outcomes?  Policy changes?  Publications and presentations? 
Depending on the particular task order, outcomes and impacts will vary. Offerors should review AHRQ’s mission and strategic plan on the AHRQ website (http://www.ahrq.gov) as well as Section 1013 of MMA.  Briefly, the strategic goals of AHRQ are related to safety, quality, effectiveness, and efficiency.  The general agency goals for which outcomes are monitored include a) reducing the risk of harm from health care services by using evidence based research to promote the delivery of the best possible care; b) improving health care outcomes by encouraging providers, consumers, and patients to use evidence based information to make informed treatment choices/decisions; and c) transforming research into practice to achieve wider access of effective health care services and reduce unnecessary health care costs.  Overall, the body of work produced by DEcIDE centers is expected to address significant and meaningful improvement in national population outcomes.  
69.
RFP page 60:  

Can the Introduction (summary) be in addition to the 125 pages, or is it to be included in the 125 pages?


The 125 page limit includes the Introduction.
70.
RFP page 62:  Item 1 (c) “percentage of fulltime core personnel”  

a.  Can ARHQ clarify what is meant by this point, as it is denoted a “topic.”  Does it mean the percentage of core personnel who are (or are expected to be) full-time on the whole TO contract across two years (even though no tasks are yet awarded)?   Or, is it the sum of individual percentage levels of effort of core personnel?  

It is the sum of individual percentage levels of effort of core personnel.  

b.  Can AHRQ define what “core” personnel means, and is this the same as “key” personnel in contractual terms? 

Core personnel and key personnel are equivalent terms.  Key personnel represent scientific, technical and administrative personnel.

71.
RFP page 63, Item 3:  

Can AHRQ explain what can be submitted as examples of “similar work”?  E.g., Publications?  Materials such as toolkits from other projects?  Should these be submitted as appendices?  Will they count against the 125 pages?

Offerors may submit work relevant to any of the objectives listed in the RFP.  Publications and toolkits are acceptable and will count towards the proposal page limits.  

72.
RFP page p. 64, Items 1c, and d: 

a.  Are we correct in assuming that “references to all publications” can be taken care of through submission of complete CVs, or would AHRQ like to see some form of individual-specific bibliographies?  For core/key personnel with dozens of publications, we are not clear how to provide this information efficiently, particularly with a page-limited proposal.

At minimum, proposals should include submission of CV’s or NIH biosketches (as described in item #1 above).  Offerors may summarize their program expertise by adding individual-specific bibliographies as a way to facilitate reviewer evaluation of the proposal.

b.  On availability, is AHRQ looking for an estimated percentage of  time availability across both years of the TO or only the first year?  Can this be done as a range rather than a point estimate? 
Availability should be estimated for both years.  A reasonably tight range is acceptable. 
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 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1BREAKDOWN OF PROPOSED ESTIMATED COST (PLUS FEE) AND LABOR HOURS
INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE OF THE FORMAT
1.
Refer to Business Proposal Instructions, Section L of this solicitation. The Instructions contain the requirements for proper submission of cost/price data which must be adhered to.

2.
This sample format has been prepared as a universal guideline for all solicitations. It may require amending to meet the specific requirements of this solicitation.  For example, this solicitation may require the submission of cost/price data for three years listed on this form.  (See Section L, Instructions, Conditions and Notices to Offerors, for the estimated duration of this project.)  If this solicitation is phased, identify each phase in addition to each year.  Total each year, phase, and sub-element.

3.
This format must be used to submit the breakdown of all proposed estimated cost elements. List each cost element and sub-element for direct costs, indirect costs and fee, if applicable. In addition, provide detailed calculations for all items. For example:

a.
For all personnel, list the name, title, rate per hour and number of hours proposed. If a pool of personnel is proposed, list the composition of the pool and how the cost proposed was calculated. List the factor used for prorating Year One and the escalation rate applied between years.

Offeror's proposal should be stated in the same terms as will be used to account for and record direct labor under a contract (i.e. percentage of effort is used for most faculty and professional employees at educational institutions).  If percentages of effort are used, the basis to which such percentages are applied must also be submitted by the offeror.  The attached format should be revised to accommodate direct labor proposed as a percentage of effort.

b.
For all materials, supplies, and other direct costs, list all unit prices, etc., to detail how the calculations were made.

c.
For all indirect costs, list the rates applied and the base the rate is applied to.

d.

For all travel, list the specifics for each trip.


e.

For any subcontract proposed, submit a separate breakdown format.

f.
Justification for the need of some cost elements may be listed as an attachment, i.e., special equipment, above average consultant fees, etc. 

4.
If the Government has provided "uniform pricing assumptions" for this solicitation, the offeror must comply with and identify each item.

RFP Number:                                              
Organization:                                               
Date:                                                          
BREAKDOWN OF PROPOSED ESTIMATED COST (PLUS FEE) AND LABOR HOURS







Option
Option
Option

COST ELEMENT


Year 1
Year 2
Year 1
Year 2
Year 3        Total
DIRECT LABOR:








Hours
Hours
Hours
Hours
Hours
Hours
Labor Category

Rate


Amt
 Amt
Amt
Amt
Amt
Amt
 

(Title and Name--

 use additional 

 pages as necessary)

DIRECT LABOR COST:


$        
$        
$        
$        
$        
$        
MATERIAL COST:



$        
$        
$        
$        
$        
$        


TRAVEL COST:



$        
$        
$        
$        
$        
$        


OTHER (Specify)



$        
$        
$        
$        
$        
$        


OTHER (Specify)



$        
$        
$        
$        
$        
$        


TOTAL DIRECT COST:


$        
$        
$        
$        
$        
$        


FRINGE BENEFIT COST:

(if applicable)

    % of Direct Labor Cost


$        
$        
$        
$        
$        
$        


INDIRECT COST:

    % of Total Direct Cost


$        
$        
$        
$        
$        
$        


TOTAL COST:



$        
$        
$        
$        
$        
$        


FEE:

(if applicable)






    % of Total Est. Cost


$        
$        
$        
$        
$        
$        


GRAND TOTAL EST COST



$        
$        
$        
$        
$        
$        


(PLUS FIXED FEE)
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